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Chairman’s Letter

Dear Investors:

In 2016, Chinasoft recorded its 13th consecutive year of revenue increase since listing, and has over 47,000 employees.

The Group achieved revenue of RMB6.78 billion, and service revenue of RMB6.57 billion, 100 times more than when the

Group was listed in 2003. Chinasoft continues to rise in rankings in China’s ITS industry and has been regarded as one of

the leaders in this industry.

HELPING OUR LARGE CUSTOMERS TRANSFORM

We have gained a lot through our competition with our peers in the Indian ITS industry, and were able to fully
participate in helping our biggest global banking clients to realize its digital transformation. This shows that our large
customers in key industries globally have moved from the concept of digital transformation to actual implementation.
In this round of construction, China’s software service companies, including ourselves, have gained first-mover
advantages. Whether it's our service implementation for Tencent’s WeBank, or financial big data implementation
with Huawei, the Group’s experience and practices in DevOps and Agile development have become the basis for
oversea clients to choose us. Software services are experienced services, and currently our big customers are
experiencing changes in the development stage. These changes will become our opportunities to “overtake” our
peers. We can see how evident these changes are just by looking at the changes in Microsoft’s office decorations
and layout. Before, Microsoft’s signature office view was to have one software engineer in his/her own cubicle. Now,
Microsoft has completed its cloud transformation to become the world’s second biggest public cloud service
provider, and its office now resembles more of a startup. Catapult, our subsidiary in America that was named
Microsoft’s Partner of the Year in 2016, not only witnessed this transformation, but also as a pioneer in digitalization,
aided in this transformation. Catapult designed and developed Digital Workforce Suite based on Azure, and we are
looking forward to see their first success in this field in the US market. As the first company to pass Huawei’'s
certification to become its cloud service partner, the Group has witnessed firsthand how aggressive Huawei, known
for its execution, is when they march head on into cloud computing. New disruptions are happening and industry
landscapes will be changed. These changes are truly exciting!

BEGINNING OF SOFTWARE SERVICE INDUSTRY’S UPGRADING TRANSFORMATION

Our “dual-wheel” growth strategy is a foresight of ours for the future development of the software service industry.
We believe that there will be a wave of software and consumer services when customers are fully connected with the
providers, and when everyone has access to a powerful “computer” within their palms. The to C (consumer
application) market will reverse overtake the to B (business application) market, and the software and ITS will no
longer be on a pedestal. We see how powerful, clean, and intuitive these “no downloads required, easy to share”
WeChat small programs are. Most importantly, the investment required for development is very small, and there is no
room to “over-sale” with the software developments! We see that there is an industry consensus that the software
and ITS industries are in urgent need of transformation. Jointforce was able to initially and continuously provide
answers for this upgrading transformation. This is the most heartfelt reward in year zero of the Jointforce
development.
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Chairman’s Letter

New “Man + Machine” enabled software services are on the rise. Our “Application Development: Done on Jointforce
through Huawei Cloud”, which revealed our joint improvements with Huawei in its software development cloud, is
not only a market slogan, but also a mutual understanding between Huawei and us for the nature of the industry. Our
goal is to become a strategic partner that “shares the same boat”, as we further bundle both parties’ functions and
services. Jointforce will co-construct a new ecosystem for ITS industry though “cloud-based software industry park”
and “cloud based IT center”.

MOVING TOWARDS ACTIVE OFFENSE AND “STARTING AGAIN”.

Active offense means the Group’s lines of business will face a full on sales-driven transformation. More specifically,
that there will be a transition towards younger management and first-line managers (decreasing the average age by
10 years). We will reward accomplishments, promote “warriors” (talents), continue to hire new personnel, and
embrace these “new bloods”. We will leverage the global market, lead technological revolutions, establish industry

ecosystem, and become a top global ITS enterprise. This is our vision of active offense, and starting again.

In the domestic market, the state continued to increase the supply for structure reform efforts to accelerate the
integration of manufacturing and Internet development, promoting a comprehensive industry upgrade. China
Manufacturing 2025, Internet +, big data and etc. has became the state’s strategy. New smart city will become the
trend for city developments. These brought unprecedented opportunities for the domestic IT industry and allows
Chinese IT enterprises to grow rapidly and exemplify a sense of maturity, coming from “foundation strengths” and
“internal strengths”, to compete in the global market.

There is huge demand for global ITS industry cloud services, big data, and more. The state’s “the Belt and Road”
strategy will be largely deployed, and all these will become huge business opportunities for Chinese IT enterprises to
globalize under this “digital China” integrative solution.

The Group will continue to consolidate its core businesses, providing custom services for our core clients, and
enroot in software service center cities including Xi’an, Shenzhen, Nanjing, Chengdu, Wuhan, Beijing, Shanghai, and
Guangzhou. The Group will continue to develop new innovative services as we grow, and as the leading enterprise,
we will demonstrate and contribute to the development of China’s IT industry. The Group sees the global market as
a motivating source, and will leverage that along with our innovative advantages to compete with Indian IT
companies. The Group will increase its pace for global layout, and plan to establish new centers an India, Middle
East, North Africa, and Russia, while improving existing centers in America, Hungary, and Malaysia. Lastly, the Group
will leverage cloud-based digital transformation services to complete its global layout, service global clients, and
establish Chinese influence in the global IT industry.
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Chairman’s Letter

The smart application of data allows enterprises to obtain a clear competitive advantage. Whether it is domestic or
global, enterprises are all “hugging” big data, exploring and establishing their competitiveness. In 2016, the Group
established an advantageous and unique industry crossover big data servicing capability, and achieved key
breakthroughs in finance, transportation, and energy industry, and laid a strong foundation to expand its big data
business into different industries. Because of our leading capabilities in big data, we were rewarded as one of the
China’s Top 100 Big Data Companies in 2016. In the future, the Group’s big data business will continue to contribute
in the areas of government, banks, insurance, securities, financial regulators, transportation, logistics, energy,
manufacturing, and media. Big data businesses will become a strong engine for promoting the Group’s future

development and strategy transformation.

As the Group’s “Starting Again” campaign develops, a new round of growth for the Group has opened. “Walk the
world, build Jointforce”, we will be on the offense. The Group‘s future is worth the anticipation!

Chairman
Chen Yuhong
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Business Overview

1)

NEW DEVELOPMENT HIGHLIGHTS:

The Jointforce platform entered into a “mission” strategic cooperation with the Huawei Software Development
Cloud and initiated a cloud-based revolution. The Group will build a brand new software customization
development ecosystem.

The Group’s strategic relationship with Huawei strengthened as it established a new joint innovative big data
laboratory in Xi’an and will work hand in hand with Huawei Software Development Cloud and build a new
customizable development ecosystem.

The Group entered into a strategic cooperation with Tencent to become Tencent Cloud’s highest ranked
channel partner.

Catapult Systems was on the cover of “CIO Review”, and rewarded as the “The Company with the Most
Potential as Microsoft’s Service Provider” in 2016.

The Group was inaugurated as the first class of the “Level One Enterprise in IT System Integration and
Services in China”.

COMPANY STRATEGY

1.

Globalization: Leverage the “the Belt and Road” and Establish Chinese Influence In the Global IT
Community

In essence, the “the Belt and Road” development strategy is a system upgrade and input of the different
unique Chinese cities’ experiences. It is an opportunity arisen based on the basic infrastructure establishment,
city operation, financial support, human resource, innovative technologies, cultural integration, and other
industries. The basis of this system upgrade is the wide usage of ICT to increase a leapfrog development of
the country. In truth, the “the Belt and Road” strategy is the country’s digitalization plan, and for it to
consolidate, advances, and promotes the evolution of different cities. The “the Belt and Road” provides a
huge business potential for “Digital China”.

The Group, in long term, provides IT services, Microsoft, Huawei, HSBC and other Fortune 500 companies in
32 different countries and have accumulate customer experiences for a large amount of global clients. The
Group will leverage the digital “the Belt and Road”, combining Huawei’s product and industry experience and
speed up the Group’s global expansion plans. The Group will establish global centers in Russia, India, Middle
East and North Africa, and improve its centers in America, Hungary, and Malaysia. The Group will become a
global IT company and establish a Chinese It presence in the global IT community through its digital
transformational services.
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Business Overview

2. Jointforce: Consolidate the Best Ecosystem Resources and Enter into Regional Markets

The Jointforce platform has been commercialized for a year and a half. Its brand recognition and influences
increased significantly and businesses increased. As of the end of 2016, there are over 1,000 teams, close to
3,000 companies, and over 130,000 engineers available on the platform. There are close to 20,000
contracting companies posting over RMB600 million worth of contracts on the platform, fully verifying the IT
Model 2 (transformational and innovative IT development). The initial industry ecosystem has been
established.

Currently, Jointforce is in over 387 cities. Jointforce successfully launched “famous city” events in Xi’an,
Guangzhou, and Nanjing, and established regional platform organizations in key software cities including
Beijing, Shanghai, Xi’an, Dalian, Chengdu, Wuhan, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. In the future, Jointforce will
fully participate in regional smart city construction projects. The company is resolved to work with Huawei as
strategic partners and leverage its core capabilities and ecosystem to devote to cloud migration and
integration, big data city operation (new smart city), software cloud based on cloud, smart manufacturing
cloud, education cloud and other core businesses and unique competitive advantages. The Group will
strengthen the cooperation between ResourceOne and PaaS layer products, and though Jointforce to
provide more application and operation management services. The goal is to “share the same boat” with

Huawei and continue to improve end customers’ satisfactions.

3. Big Data: Core Competitiveness through Industry Barriers, Breakthrough in Data Value

The IDC predicts that the big data and analytic market will grow from USD130 billion to USD203 billion from
2016 to 2020. The Group’s increased available data, the emergence and development of next-generation
technologies, and the cultural transformation of data-driven decision-making have continued to stimulate
market demand for big data and analytic services. In 2016, the Group quickly established unique
cross-industry big data services advantages, including establishing a high quality big data service team
covering consulting, implementation, development, quality and professional pragmatism, an advanced
independent software platform and cross-industry consulting and implementation methodology, end-to-end
solutions, technical service capabilities to help customers plan and design rational and scientific big data
structures, methodical integration of data sharing, precision marketing and micro management, and
operational risk control capabilities improvements. In the past year, the Group’s big data business maintained
its leading positions in the financial sector and built on its existing foundations. In the insurance and regulatory
market, the Group improved its market regulation standardization and precision. The Group big data platform
achieved breakthrough in the core institutions of China’s capital market with its big data application, Huawei’s
IT services in data communication, energy industry, transportation industry, media industry, and etc. Lastly,
the Group was successfully selected as the Top 100 Big Data Companies in 2016.

In the future, the Group’s data business will continue to contribute in the areas of financial regulators,
government and high-tech parks, industry authorities, banks, insurance, securities, transportation, logistics,
energy, manufacturing, public security, medical and health care, and media. The Group will leverage its
knowledge in multiple industries, effective business lines, and technology training system to provide a
comprehensive big data services and decision support. Big data will become the Group’s new growth engine.
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Business Overview

1)

BUSINESS LANDSCAPE

The Group is positioned to provide integrated software and information services, i.e. end-to-end IT services,
including consulting services, technical services outsourcing services, and training services. The technical services
mainly involve IT solutions and outsourcing services, including ITO, BPO, EPO, and more. The Group’s customers
are in industry sectors that possess high IT growth potentials, including finance, telecommunication, government and
manufacturing, high technology, and etc. The Group’s customers are located in China, United States of America,
and Asia Pacific region. The Group owns more than 300 software copyrights and patents, including Resource-One
(R1), the middleware platform software that provides application support for industry solutions, and TopLink, the
software platform product that supports big-data exchange.

i. Technology professional services group (TPG)

Software Platform Products

Strategy, Business, and IT Consulting

Industry and General Application Software and Solution Development
System Integration and Services

Product Engineering

Application Development and Management Services

Enterprise Application Services

Business, Engineering and Knowledge Process Outsourcing

© © N o o s Db

Mobile Internet Products and Services

N
e

Big Data Products and Services
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Business Overview

ii.. Internet IT services group (lIG)

1. JointForce Platform

2. Cloud Migration and Operation Services
3. Cloud Consulting and SaaS Services

4. PaaS Products and Services

5. Training Business

1. Segment Descriptions
i. Introduction of TPG business

TPG is the first “wheel” of our bi-model structure that services large customers and large industries
that require the Group’s experienced project management skill sets, human resource capabilities, and
control of certain specific resources. The Huawei and financial lines of business are TPG’s leading
lines of business.

The Group has over the years consistently used the consulting-driven business model, based on its
independently developed software platform products, and provided end-to-end professional services
that combine consulting methodology with the information technology practices of China’s
enterprises. It adheres to the philosophy to focus on the industry, and prioritize services and strive for
customers’ success. In addition, the Group has trained a large number of experts in the industries that
it serves, and established harmonious reciprocal win-win business environment with its customers,
with a high level of market appeal and customer loyalty, which has effectively established the leading
position of the Group in the solutions field in China. The Group is also committed to provide global
customers with complete, flexible, and scalable high quality IT outsourcing services. With experienced
management and technology specialists as well as a variety of delivery models, the Group is able to
adapt to changing business and technology environments.

° Software Platform Products

The Group currently has two series of proprietary software platform products, the Resource-
One and TopLink/TSA+. The Group integrated the concept of “Products are services and
services are products” into the design structure of these products, which also allows the
Group to find a balance between stability and changing market demand. The Group continued
to invest and improve its software platform products for over a decade to enhance the
technical applicability and performance of the products, thereby continuously enhancing the
levels and standards of customer services.

Chinasoft International Limited  Annual Report 2016

9



10 Business Overview

The Group’s Big Data middleware (Ark) is a one-stop, large data scenario development
platform in the big data market that encapsulates the technical details of the current
mainstream data technology framework (such as Hive, Hbase, HDFS, Spark, and etc.) The
platform can help enterprise users to quickly visualize and create a big data processing
process, help companies quickly migrate existing data to large data technology system, and to
enjoy the large data technology for data processing to bring forth new changes. Meanwhile,
Ark can largely reduce the cost for enterprise users learning how to use big data technologies,
and help enterprise users to unify its application and maintenance, allowing the users to freely

navigate through the sea of potential valuable data.

o Strategy, Business, and IT Consulting

Consulting services sit at the top end of the business value chain of the Group. By providing
strategy and business consulting services, the Group can more clearly understand the intrinsic
nature of customers’ business and understand their real needs. The Group’s consulting
products and services are based on rigorous and proven scientific methods and frameworks.
In the areas of business processes, technology and outsourcing, the Group analyzes and
evaluates the existing environment to determine the optimizing opportunity, and provides
customers with the strategic development path that can significantly save costs and increase
productivity.

° Vertical and Cross-Industry Application Software and Solution Development

The Group provides customers in a variety of industries with End-To-End process services that
include vertical and cross-industry application software and solutions. The Group uses
Resource-One application supporting platform to penetrate through the entire project cycle of
“Planning — General Design — Development — Overall Integration — Operation and Maintenance”,
in which the integration methodology of the Group has been incorporated, including:

> In the planning and design phase, the Group dispatches appropriate industry
consultants and qualified designers, armed with in-depth knowledge of the best
practices of information technology, to understand the customer’s business needs and
form a business components map that can be assembled using the R1 platform and an
integrated business framework.

> In the scalable development and testing phase, the Group’s on-site team members will
work closely with the customer, keeping up with the customer’s changing needs. The
Group assigns a large amount of development and testing work to the Center of
Excellence (COE) to be conducted in different professional expertise areas including
Java,.net applications, cloud computing, and mobile solutions. By using the
development tool of the R1 platform, our COE ensures a unified technological
architecture and quality, thus effectively increasing repeat usage as well as reducing
development time and costs.
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Business Overview

> In the application integration phase, the Group’s implementation engineers will use the
integration methodology of Resource-One as well as other robust, scalable and
extensible platform tools to conduct integration tests and assemble the components of

complex business applications according to their levels and categories.

> In the operation and maintenance phase, the Group’s platforms, application software
and solutions have been adopted by a number of strategic industries nationwide; the
Group has simultaneously completed the layout with specialized operation and
maintenance teams in all key areas of China.

With years of experience and the successful practice of a large number of projects, the Group
has gained industry service capability, customer service capability, regional service capability
and large project service capability. Relying upon its R1 platform software, the Group focuses
on process control in development and business management, while adhering to standard
requirements of quality control systems 1ISO9001, ISO20000, ISO27001 and CMMI, fully
ensuring the service quality and delivery time.

System Integration and Services

The Group has extensive experience in services with “A” qualification for system integration,
and the major services provided include system integration, system maintenance and system
operation. Together with other services, the Group covers the entire life cycle of information

systems, ensuring smooth construction and operation of medium to large information systems.

Product Engineering

The Group provides product engineering services to technology product development
companies, including independent software vendors and telecommunications equipment
developers. The Group’s capability of fast delivery can help customers improve the speed of
product development, and save development costs, thus gaining the time advantage in
marketing their products. The development of products by the Group includes operating
system, database, middleware, network protocol, speech recognition and human-machine
interface, telecom value-added applications and other software products. The Group can also
provide specialized products and services, including product design, development, and quality
assurance and testing.

Chinasoft International Limited  Annual Report 2016
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12 Business Overview

° Application Development and Maintenance

To specific customers, the Group offers application development and management services
such as application software development, system maintenance and system optimization,
based on the needs of industry customers. The Group’s ADM services were designed to help
customers realize the scientific management of spending in IT outsourcing, enabling customers
to focus more on their core competencies. The Group has experienced and well-structured
ADM service teams in application environments such as mainframe computers, client servers,
internet and mobile internet, as well as a variety of platform software programs including
various mainframe system, Windows series, Linux/Unix and Android, Symbian, IPhone OS, etc.
The Group can deliver the ADM services in its Centers of Excellence (COE) or at customers’
sites.

° Enterprise Application Services

The Group provides consulting-driven enterprise application services. While keeping standard
functions of system application unchanged, the Group takes into consideration the differences
in customized needs of enterprises, managerial needs and proposes an application solution
meeting their needs. This enhances management quality of enterprises, and allow customers
to realize goals of supporting business of enterprises.

The Group’s enterprise application services cover a number of mainstream ERP systems and
e-business packages, including enterprise resource planning (ERP) systems, customer
relationship management (CRM), supply chain management (SCM), enterprise application
integration (EAI), and etc. Specific services provided by the Group include: packaged software
implementation, customized development, maintenance and product upgrades, business
intelligence (Bl)/data warehouse (DW).

° Business, Engineering and Knowledge Process Outsourcing

The Group offers BPO, EPO and KPO services to customers within different fields including
finance, manufacturing, medical and healthcare, transportation and logistics, targeting at
markets in Japan, Europe, America and the Greater China regions. The Group provides
customers with multilingual BPO, EPO and KPO services, including back office processing,
shared service centers, data processing, desktop publishing (DTP), CAD, Call Centers,
business intelligence and data mining.

° Mobile Internet product and service

The Group is the one of earlier mobile application product designers and is also one of largest
professional mobile end developer and adaptation of service providers. The Group provides
Instant message, fusion of communication, mobile social, mobile payment, enterprise mobile
application, application shopping mall, and internal product design, as well as development
and operating marketing service.
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° Big Data Products and Services

The Group provides big data related consulting, implementation and development services,
and the Group is committed to provide government and enterprises with data strategy
consulting, data platform, data management and data analysis services. The Group is focused
on the development of government and enterprises’ data and technology solutions for China’s
national conditions, and with its plentiful experience in industry-level and enterprise-level
project construction, the Group is able to help customers plan and design scientific and
reasonable big data overall structure, achieve data integration and sharing open, so as to
enhance the level of fine management, strengthen capability of operational risk control, help
the government to innovate the government administration methods, help industry enterprises
and financial institutions to achieve business transformation and upgrading.

Introduction of IIG business

IIG is the other “wheel” in the Group’s bimodal structure. The Internet ITS business is focused on what
we call “on-line” business with customers that are more price sensitive and projects that are best
handled by flexible resources. Majority of the work in [IG will be performed through our JointForce (JF)
platform. With the JF platform, developers from anywhere in the country can freely bid and work on
projects listed on the platform, allowing the business to pick and choose the best developers at the

lowest cost.

At the same time, projects that have only periodical service needs can come to the platform when
services are needed and pay no continued fixed costs when the projects are completed. This greatly
alleviates the waiting cost in traditional ITS models for projects that have long waiting periods between
tasks.

° JointForce

The JF platform was created to relieve the difficulties facing the industry. Recent technology
innovation in SMAC played a pivotal role enabling the platform to exist and operate as
intended. Through JF we can offer the industry an alternative to the more traditional IT service
delivery model and in the process created a sort of a clearing house for IT services at a price
that is agreeable to both the buyer and seller of this service. Like AirBnB, we are tapping into
the share-economy/crowd sourcing concept for our industry.

° Cloud migration and operation and maintenance services

The Group has been carrying out technical services including light Cloud migration,
independent host migration, system configuration, software configuration, data backup, data
transfer and system configuration, Clients cover individual user, professional user, as well as
enterprise user. It also provides maintenance service for users. In the near future the Group will
provide more technical cloud servicing capabilities in accordance to new technologies, acquire
new partners, and expansion into new industries.

Chinasoft International Limited  Annual Report 2016
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Cloud consulting and SaaS customization services

The era of cloud computing has arrived for those that want to simplify IT, push innovation,
increase returns on IT investments, and increase efficiency in operations. The Group entered
into a strategic agreement with Ali-Cloud, the leading Chinese cloud computing company, to
provide cloud consulting and customized services. Innovation is treated as a standard today,
including rich social experience, mobile payment, friendly user interface, structured and
unstructured instant search data and regularly and upgrade without interference, The Group’s
SaaS solution project combine user needs by innovation technology. These innovation
functions are able to disrupt the client’s core business and enhance its core system
performance. Furthermore, the Group already signed strategic cooperation with Alibaba Group
to participate in its “Digital Internet City” project. The Group will work on the PaaS level.

PaaS (Software interface in the Cloud products) and services

Radar Cloud PaaS platform is the Group’s proprietary PaaS product that enables cloud
development, integration, management, and serves as a portal to link with other cloud
partners. Radar Cloud PaaS platform is the result of the Group’s business innovation and
dedication to products. It is also the result of the Group’s strategy to go smart in verticals
including government, medicinal, transportation, real estate, education, and etc, The Group
focuses on new technology, new models, and will use the Radar Cloud PaaS platform as the
base for cloud computation to improve the Group’s cloud capabilities, further pushing smart
transformation.

ETC Training business

The Group’s Excellence Training Center (ETC) is a practical training base of computer
technology for college students, as certified by the Ministry of Education of China. It is one of
the industry’s leading brands for mid-end to high-end IT training. Through cooperation with
colleges and universities, practical training based on real positions and projects are provided
for college students majoring in computer sciences or other related areas. So far, the Group
has established training centers in Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Changsha, Wuxi, Chonggqing,

Xiamen, Nanjing, and Shenyang.
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Business Overview

2. Industry Verticals

The Group has strong presence in the following industry verticals:

ii.

Government and Enterprises

Over the years, as a pioneer for e-government, the Group has leveraged its extensive industry
experience and its understanding of the intrinsic nature of customers’ needs and based on Resource-
One, has undertaken a number of key national technological projects. As the chief integrator, the
Group has achieved outstanding results in a humber of national Golden Projects, such as Golden
Auditing, Golden Quality, Golden Insurance, Golden Agriculture (Agricultural Management and Service
Information System), Golden Macroeconomic Management (Macroeconomic Management Information
System) and Golden IC-Card Projects, by which Resource-One was recognized by CCID as the top
brand among e-government application support platform products in China, establishing a
comprehensive leading position in e-government. According to IDC market research, the Group has
maintained among the top three in the overall rankings in the market of government industry solutions
for a number of consecutive years. Through cooperation with Ali-Cloud, the Group achieved a
breakthrough in the field of government cloud, and became one of the leading providers of
government cloud services in China.

Manufacturing and Circulation (Tobacco)

Leveraging on the Group’s in-depth understanding of manufacturing and circulation industry,
combined with its professional IT experience and service capabilities deployed around the country, the
Group has made intensive efforts over years in the manufacturing industry with a number of
proprietary software systems such as MES and Logistics Execution Systems (LES). The Group provide
customers with “end-to-end” services covering from automation system at the bottom to decision
support system at the top, from factories application to group management and from management
consulting and IT planning to systems development and IT operation and maintenance, while
occupying a leading position. The Group’s business covers tobacco, military industry machinery,
automobile, steel, pharmaceutical, printing, etc. In particular, as a strategic partner in tobacco industry
information services, the Group has such core strengths as the leading IT and comprehensive
all-rounded capabilities, and is engaged in the establishment of industry application standards,
achieving 100% coverage of Chinese cigarette top 100 brands. MES, with its market leading scale
and its big data projects of the industry, has further enhanced and accumulated its capabilities in
big-data, and expanded its applications to other industries.
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16 Business Overview

iii.

Financial Services and Banking

Thanks to professional services and TopLink, the payment platform product with proprietary
intellectual properties, the Group provides personalized financial services, with secured payment as its
core, to its customers in financial and banking sector. The Group has a long history in providing
industry solutions, system integration services and related high-end services for its key customers
including five major state-owned banks, postal savings banks, a number of joint-stock commercial
banks and city commercial banks, as well as foreign-invested financial institutions in China. The Group
accumulated extensive experience in industry application and achieved “Three Firsts” in China - the
first inter-bank bankcard payment network system, the first financial IC card payment and clearing
system and the first e-commerce online payment and settlement system. In particular, the “electronic
funds transfer and retail banking application system” was recognized as one of the outstanding
projects of the fifteenth National Torch Program. In 2016, the Group became the only global service
provider in China. According to IDC market research, the Group was ranked among the top five for
many years in the payment and clearing solutions market of the banking industry, and was ranked the
first in bankcard system markets in 2010. High level of customer recognition has been achieved
regarding its capabilities in business advisory and solutions segments of Internet Finance.

Insurance and Securities

With strong technical strength and extensive experience in the financial industry, the Group has
already secured many prestigious customers in the insurance and securities industry, and is highly
recognized by the customers for its service practices. In addition, it has established leading technical
position in high-end insurance sectors, including core business operations, channels management
and marketing support, back desk management, business intelligent (Bl) and insurance/securities
content and knowledge management. The Group has also penetrated into the core business and
high-end business to become a key market player in the insurance and securities industry, helping
customers to secure more competitive advantages.

Telecommunications and Internet

The Group is one of the early service providers in wireless Internet platform design, development and
operation, and also one of the largest professional service providers in application development and
adaptation for mobile clients. As a trusted partner of China’s telecommunications operators and
equipment makers, the Group provides its customers with product design and development, and
operation and promotion services such as mobile payment, mobile instant messaging, mobile SNS,
enterprise mini blog, mobile application stores, PTT (push to talk intercom phones), embedded
browser, mobile advertising platform, etc. Through development of products for Fetion of China
Mobile, its foundation has been laid, and it will promote integrated communication strategy for China
Mobile.

The Group has been providing long-term services for well-known Internet IT companies. The Group
strengthened customer cooperation and established capability centers, improving service efficiencies.
Leveraging on the accumulation of Internet industry experiences, the Group achieved breakthroughs
in multiple large customers in the Internet industry. The Group consolidated its industry solutions and
provided customers with “end-to-end” services, further maintaining its leading industry position. The
key customers in the Internet industry include Tencent, Sina, Baidu, and etc. Lastly, the Group signed
a strategic cooperation with Tencent Cloud to become its highest ranked channel partner.
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Business Overview

Public Services (Transportation)

After years of accumulated professional experiences, the Group is in a leading position in the public
transportation areas such as subway transport, rail transit and airport management, and has
established three “First System in China” - the nation’s first smart card payment and settlement
system in urban transport, the nation’s first one-tickettransfer payment system in urban rail transit,
and the nation’s first Automatic Fare Collection system (AFC) with independent intellectual property
rights. The Group provides customers in the transportation industry with solutions and professional
application integration, operation and maintenance services such as Smart Card, Automatic Fare
Collection system (AFC), AFC Clearing Centre (ACC), intelligent transportation, and airport operation
management system. The Group’s smart-card-type solutions enjoys the largest market share in China,
which have been adopted by nearly 30 cities. More than 100 million cards have been issued
throughout the network systems and stood up well to the test of very large customer traffic. The
Group also has a definite advantage in this space with mobile operations’ payment business. Through
cooperation with strategic partners, the mobile payment business has been successfully established
in the overseas market.

Electricity Distribution and Energy

Through years of experience in corporate control, ERP, supply chain management, management
services, etc., the Group targets at strengthening the macro-management of enterprises engaging in
the provision of electricity and oil in the energy industry, enhancing the overall requirement on
corporate control, which allows it to partially enter into the core business system and management
information system in the energy industry.

Leveraging on its “end-to-end” service capability and continuously making use of the overall
requirement for the industry in the macro economy, the Group laid a solid foundation for the
systematization of its customers in the energy industry with the support of a professional team and an
excellent operation system. Its clients confirm its capability in electricity sales, operational inspection
in terms of material, and its market position is stabilized.

High-Technology Business

The Group’s high-technology business has clients located in America, Europe, Japan and Greater
China, to whom the Group provides comprehensive and tailor-made services. Standardized delivery of
services was achieved through delivery centers set up around the world. According to IDC’s market
research reports, the Group was ranked the top 3 in China’s overall offshore outsourcing market,
ranked the top 2 in the European and American market. For the 7th consecutive year, the Group was
named as “Global Outsourcing 100” by IAOP (International Association of Outsourcing Professionals).
The Group’s major customers include Microsoft, GE, etc.
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V)

The Group is Microsoft’s first Global Premier Vender in the PRC, Microsoft’s most valuable global
vendor, and a preferred supplier of Microsoft’s MCS (Microsoft Consulting Services) in the PRC. It has
also obtained the certification COPC (Customer Operations Performance Center). Meanwhile, the
Group’s Catapult unit is one of only 32 Microsoft National Solutions Providers, and has expertise
across the entire Microsoft stack. In 2015, Catapult Systems held 11 gold Microsoft competencies
and 2 silver competencies, and was recognized for various awards including 20 Most Promising Azure
Solution Providers. Catapult is an outstanding consulting service provider specializing on Microsoft
business, resulting in closer strategic cooperation between the Group and Microsoft, as well as
enhancement of the Group’s capabilities in cloud computing and serving Microsoft’s customers
globally.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT HISTORY

In February 2000, Chinasoft International was incorporated with headquarter in Beijing. The Group’s main businesses
were to provide government customers with system integrations and customized software development solutions. In
the same year, the Group introduced its proprietary application support platform Resource-One V1.0.

In 2002, Chinasoft International was awarded as the sole service provider for the e-government construction projects
in China’s top seven Economic and Technological Development Zones (Tianjin, Dalian, Harbin, Beijing and
Guangzhou, Suzhou, Xi’an), and subsequently the Group won contracts for the construction of office automation
projects for the National Audit Office, the Ministry of Transport, the Ministry of Agriculture, the Ministry of Civil Affairs,
the Ministry of Construction, and etc..

In 2003, the Group was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (GEM) board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Supported by the capital platform, the Group adopted a new development model of organic growth + growth via
mergers and acquisitions. This led to rapid growth in both financial performance and scale. The vertical industries
that the Group served expanded from government to state-guided large-scale manufacturers, and the Group
gradually underwent a transformation from a traditional distributor and integrator of hardware and software to a
solutions provider. Furthermore, it adhered to independent research and development, upgraded Resource-One to
V3.0 based on the SOA architecture, and successfully promoted it to different verticals and industries.

In 2004, the Group entered the IT training field through the acquisition of Computer Training Centre of CS & S.

In 2005, the Group kept up with the changing landscape of the time by entering into the IT outsourcing (ITO) market
through successfully merging and integrating with Chinasoft Resources Information Technology Services Limited. It
then established strategic partnerships with top international enterprises such as Microsoft, and set up operation in
the United States. Later that year, the Group acquired Powerise International and expanded its ITO business to
Japan. Leveraging on the flourishing ITO business, the Group successfully expanded from China’s domestic market

into a broader oversea market.
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In 2007, the Group acquired and integrated Hinge Global Resources, and extended its services into financial and
transportation industries. In addition, the Group added specialized BPO services. Leveraging its comprehensive
capabilities and industry position, the Group became a top SOA partner for International Business Machines
Corporation (IBM). Together they built the Group’s SOA Innovation Center. In addition, the Group’s Excellence
Training Centers (ETCs) set up practical training bases in Beijing, Changsha, Dalian, Wuxi, Chongging, Xiamen,
Tianjin, and Nanjing; each with an area of 1,000-5,000 square meters, with total annual training capacity of over
10,000 people.

In 2008, The Group successfully up-listed from the GEM Board to the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(Ticket: HKSE.354). In 2010, the group acquired Han Consulting, which significantly strengthened the Group’s
front-end consulting capabilities. The Group has completed its end-to-end capabilities which included IT consulting,
technology services, outsourcing services, and training services. In the same year, the Group entered into the
telecom and mobile Internet industries through acquisition of MMIM Technologies, Inc.

In 2011, the Group introduced Hony Capital as a strategic investor and formed a strategic partnership. The Group
will carry out integration in the information service business as an enterprise that is used as a platform. In the same
year, the Group formed a brand new campus (will fit over 10,000 employees) located at the New Software City in
Xi’an High-Tech Zone.

2012 was a momentous year for the Group as it partnered with Huawei and launched the joint venture (JV). The
Group soon entered into an operational stage with a stable growth trend in performance. The Group became the top
vender for Huawei and synergies emerged in the JV early on. In the same year the Group also entered into the
electricity industry through the acquisition of a supplier for the State Grid Electric Power.

In 2013, Catapult, a US service provider specialized in consultancy services on Microsoft products and technologies,
was acquired to enhance the Group’s cloud integration and high-end servicing capabilities in the new technology IT
services such as Cloud computing, mobile and social media. This has laid a solid foundation for the development of
global market through the strengthened strategic cooperation with Microsoft. The Group achieved a closer
cooperation with Ali-Cloud and became a chief promoter of Yunqgi Cloud Alliance, the country’s first alliance in cloud
computing organized by Ali-cloud. The Group worked closely with Ali-Cloud in the promotion of the development of
cloud related industry, and together signed an agreement with Zhejiang Province government administration to build
a demonstration pilot project of smart cloud, achieving the implementation of homegrown electronic administration
cloud solution.
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In 2014, the Group’s business with Huawei grew strongly. The JV with Huawei provided experience that improved
the Group’s delivery (global and local) capabilities, service types, and laid out foundations in different industries at its
two year anniversary mark. Furthermore, the Group entered into a strategic cooperation with Huawei to become its
enterprise business line’s gold level agent, completing the first phase of the Group’s plan, which is to gain mutual
trusts from both partners. The Group now enters into phase two, which is to leverage Huawei and grow. The Group
invested in a top SaaS company that is focusing on CaaS through a Silicon Valley startup fund. The Group also
strengthened its strategic cooperation with Huawei and Ali-Cloud. The Group also became the only full suite capable
cloud service provider in the Ali-Cloud ecosystem, gaining recognition from customers for the Lishui and Guizhou
projects. The Group won bids for China Mobile Fetion, unified communication, and 139 mailbox and became the
core provider for many of China Mobile’s business lines.

2015 was a turning point for the Group’s business. As the world entered the “digitalization era”, the Group began to
re-organize its business according to on-line and off-line IT services. Joint Force, the Group’s trusted ITS crowd
sourcing platform was first launched late 2014 but officially launched to the enterprise market in mid-year 2015. This
the Group’s new model for on-line ITS services, with the new group called IIG (Internet ITS Group). Traditional IT
services continues to be served by our TPG (Technology Professional Group). Catapult Systems, our US subsidiary,
started to market and sell Solution as a Service and began its transformation to the cloud and digital world in
earnest.

2016 was an important year for the Group as it began its strategic transformation and moves toward in becoming a
global IT enterprise. The Group was selected by HSBC as the only strategic partner designated in China and
implemented full coverage service for HSBC. At the same time, the Group has fully established large data
capabilities, formed a big data service team covering consulting, implementation and development, and precipitated
advanced methodology of the independent software platform and cross-industry consulting and implementation.
Group is rated No.18 of top 100 software companies in China, 2016& 0 Td(60)Tj0.6 0f6Td()Tj Td(d)Tj0.613 0 Td(i)Tj0.229 0 a
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As of the end of 2016, the Group has a total of 47,188 employees, representing a YoY increase of 49.8% (2015: 31,504).
During the reporting period, the annual average employee size was 39,346, representing a YoY increase of 37.2% (2015:
28,680), which is in line with the Group’s service revenue increase of 36.1%.

As of the end of 2016, the Group employs 45,188 technical staffs, accounting for 95.8% of the total employees. Of which,
17,918 technical staffs are project managers and consultants (core talents), accounting for 39.7% of the total

technical staffs.

The Group’s business continues to boom. The rapid growth in employment size since listing on the Growth Enterprise
Market in 2003 is as follows:

- — N

a7
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OPERATING RESULTS

The Group’s consolidated income statements in 2015 and 2016 are as follow:

Revenue
Service Revenue

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Research and development costs

Allowance for doubtful debts

Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Fair value change on derivative financial
instruments

Gain arising from changes in fair value of
contingent consideration payable an
acquisition of a subsidiary

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Percentage Percentage
2016 Percentage  of service 2015 Percentage of service
RMB’000 of turnover revenue RMB’000  of turnover revenue
6,783,367 5,129,111
6,573,770 4,831,722
(4,767,529) (70.3%) (72.5%) (3,605,903) (70.3%) (74.6%)
2,015,838 29.7% 30.7% 1,523,208 29.7% 31.5%
41,908 0.6% 0.6% 46,259 0.9% 1.0%
1,807 0.03% 0.03% (17,625) (0.3%) (0.4%)
(219,022) (3.2%) (3.3%) (178,581) (3.5%) (3.7%)
(806,614) (11.9%) (12.3%) (627,264) (12.2%) (13.0%)
(345,269) (5.1%) (5.3%) (195,318) (3.8%) (4.0%)
(17,958) (0.3%) (0.3%) (62,055) (1.2%) (1.3%)
(88,012) (1.3%) (1.3%) (91,961) (1.8%) (1.9%)
(95,735) (1.4%) (1.5%) (92,509) (1.8%) (1.9%)
17,492 0.3% 0.3% 1,907 0.04% 0.04%
- - - 111,724 2.2% 2.3%
- - - (1,074) (0.02%) (0.02%)
20,152 0.3% 0.3% 3,283 0.1% 0.1%
524,587 7.7% 8.0% 419,994 8.2% 8.7%
(114,754) (1.7%) (1.7%) (87,010) (1.7%) (1.8%)
409,833 6.0% 6.2% 332,984 6.5% 6.9%
442,081 6.5% 6.7% 280,056 5.5% 5.8%
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REVENUE

In 2016, the Group’s revenue was RMB6,783.367 million (2015: RMB5,129.111 million), representing a YoY growth of
32.3%. The Group’s service revenue was RMB6,573.770 million (2015: RMB4,831.722 million), representing a YoY growth

of 36.1%. The growth mainly came from increasing business volume from existing large customers.

In 2016, TPG and IIG accounted for 80.8% (2015: 73.7%) and 19.2% (2015: 26.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.

2016 Weight 2015 Weight

RMB’000 RMB’000
TPG 5,481,921 80.8% 3,780,692 73.7%
G 1,301,446 19.2% 1,348,419 26.3%
Total 6,783,367 100% 5,129,111 100%

In 2016, TPG and IIG accounted for 82.4% (2015: 74.1%) and 17.6% (2015: 25.9%) of the Group’s service revenue.

2016 Weight 2015 Weight
RMB’000 RMB’000
0
TPG 5,413,546 82.4% 3,578,708 74.1%
G 1,160,224 17.6% 1,253,014 25.9%
Total 6,573,770 100% 4,831,722 100%

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

In 2016, the Group’s cost of sales and services accounted for 70.3% (2015: 70.3%) of the revenue, the same as that of last
year. The Group’s cost of sales and services were RMB4,767.529 million (2015: 3,605.903 million), representing a YoY
growth of 32.2%.

GROSS PROFIT

In 2016, the Group’s gross profit was RMB2,015.838 million (2015: 1,523.208 million), representing a YoY growth of 32.3%.
The Group’s gross margin was 29.7%, the same as that of last year (2015: 29.7%).

In the future, the Group will use the following measures to improve gross margins:

1. Increase the Group’s overall technological capabilities and value added IT services to have a stronger price

bargaining power with clients;

2. Increase the proportion of oversea businesses and continue its global layout. The oversea businesses are higher

margin business compared to that in China;
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3. Increase cloud, big data, and other emerging services. The gross margins of these emerging services are on higher
than that of the traditional IT outsourcing;

4. Increase the number of fixed priced contracts. Fixed price contracts are typically higher margin businesses than that

of the outsourcing businesses;

5. Increase the number of IP solution businesses. Contracts with the Group’s IP are quicker to scale and have higher

gross margins.

OTHER INCOME

In 2016, the Group’s other income was RMB41.908 million (2015: RMB46.259 million), representing a YoY decrease of
9.4%. The decrease was mainly due to the drop in the government subsidy during the reporting year.

OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES
In 2016, the Group’s other gains were RMB1.807 million (2015: other losses were RMB17.625 million). This was mainly due

to the exchange loss caused by the significant fluctuations in the exchange rate between USD and RMB for the syndicated
loan. The Group paid back the syndicated loan in early 2016, so there are no significant losses due to foreign exchange

during the current year.

OPERATING EXPENSES

In 2016, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses were RMB219.022 million, representing a YoY increase of 22.6%
(2015: RMB178.581 million). The Group’s selling and distribution expenses accounted for 3.2% (2015: 3.5%) of the revenue,
representing a YoY decrease of 0.3%. The Group’s selling and distribution expenses accounted for 3.3% (2015: 3.7%) of
the service revenue, representing a YoY decrease of 0.4%. The proportion of selling and distribution expenses to revenue
and service revenue decreased because during the reporting period the proportion of TPG businesses, which is focused in

large customers and industries, to IIG businesses increased.

In 2016, the Group’s administrative expenses were RMB806.614 million (2015: RMB627.264 million), representing a YoY
increase of 28.6%. The Group’s administrative expenses accounted for 11.9% (2015: 12.2%) of the revenue, representing a
YoY decrease of 0.3%. The Group’s administrative expenses accounted for 12.3% (2015: 13.0%) of the service revenue,
representing a YoY decrease of 0.7%. The decrease of the administrative expense represents the Group’s improved

administrative efficiency.

In 2016, the Group’s research and development costs were RMB345.269 million (2015: RMB195.318 million), representing
a YoY increase of 76.8%. The Group’s research and development costs accounted for 5.1% (2015: 3.8%) of the revenue,
representing a YoY increase 1.3%. The main cause of the increase is because the Group invested more into the research
and development of cloud, big data, and other emerging servicing capabilities.
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Finance Costs and Income Tax

In 2016, the Group’s finance costs accounted for 1.4% (2015: 1.8%) of the revenue, representing a YoY decrease of 0.4%.
The Group’s finance costs were RMB95.735 million, representing a YoY increase of 3.5% (2015: RMB92.509 million).

In 2016, the Group’s income tax was RMB114.754 million (2015: RMB87.010 million), representing a YoY increase of
31.9%. The reason for the increase of tax is because during the reporting period, the Group underwent a business
restructure. The tax for the change of the equity of the principal legal entity was RMB52.408 million, compared to the tax for
the disposal of subsidiaries in the previous year of RMB17.195 million. If taken out the one-time effect of these line items,
the income tax realized a YoY decrease of 10.7%. The main reason for the decrease is because during the reporting period,
the principal operating entity of the Group enjoy the preferential tax rate for key software enterprises.

Other Non-Cash Expenses

In 2016, the Group’s amortization of intangible assets and trademark usage right accounted for 1.3% (2015: 1.8%) of the
revenue, representing a YoY decrease of 0.5%. The Group’s amortization of intangible assets and trademark usage right
were RMB88.012 million (2015: RMB91.961 million), representing a YoY decrease of 4.3%.

In 2016, the Group’s allowance for doubtful debts was RMB17.958 million (2015: RMB62.055 million), representing a YoY
decrease of 71.1%. This decrease is because in 2015 the Group prepared provisions for bad debts on receivables from
disposal of available-for-sale investments, and during the reporting period, the amount was received, resulting in the
differences from 2015 to 2016.

In 2016, the Group’s share option expenses accounted for 0.7% (2015: 0.3%) of the revenue, representing a YoY increase
of 0.4%. The Group’s share option expenses were RMB45.285 million (2015: RMB13.637 million), representing a YoY
increase of 232.1%. The main reason for the increase is because during the reporting period, the Group granted 130 million
shares options to employees.

Profit of the Year and Earnings Per Share

In 2016, the Group’s profit for the year was RMB409.833 million, representing a YoY growth of 23.1% (2015: RMB332.984
million).

Excluding the loss for the year attributable to the non-controlling interests in 2016, the Group’s profit for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company was RMB442.081 million (2015: RMB280.056 million), representing a YoY growth of 57.9%.

In 2016, the Group’s basic earnings per share (EPS), based on the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company, was RMB 20.34 cents (2015: RMB14.05 cents), representing a YoY growth of 44.8%.
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Fundraising Activities

On 3 February 2016, the Group entered into the Subscription Agreement with Huarong International Asset Management
Growth Fund (the “Huarong”) pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue and Huarong has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for The total amount of the principal amount is US$70,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB458.649 million) of the Convertible Notes due in 2019. The Convertible Notes will be issued in two
installments, namely the First Tranche Convertible Notes and the Second Tranche Convertible Notes. The total amount of
the First Tranche Convertible Notes is US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB196.564 million) and the Second
Tranche Convertible Notes total principal amount of US$40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB262.085 million) have
been issued in 15 February 2016 and 10 March 2016. The Group will use the proceeds for general working capital

purposes.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company believes that corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and has adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is maintained.
The code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules have served as guideposts for the Company to follow in its implementation of corporate governance measures.

Key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company as well as details relating to the foregoing
deviation are summarized below.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group has complied with the CG Code from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016,
except that (i) the Chairman of the Board was not able to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
18 May 2016 (the “2015 AGM”) (deviated from code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code) due to other business
commitment. However, one of the independent non-executive Directors attended and acted as the Chairman of the
2015 AGM; (i) the roles of chairman and chief executive officer were performed by the same individual. The Board
believes that by holding both roles, Dr. Chen will be able to provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
and it allows for more effective and efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of long-term
business strategies of the Group, As such, the structure is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
(deviated from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code).

The Board will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review such practices from time to time to ensure that they comply with statutory and professional
standards and align with the latest developments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules relating to dealings in securities. In response to a specific
enquiry by the Company, the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Composition of the Board of Directors

During the year in review and up to the date of this report, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) comprises:

Executive directors:

Dr. Chen Yuhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Tang Zhenming
Mr. Wang Hui (retired on 18 May 2016)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. Zhang Yaqin
Mr. Samuel Thomas Goodner  (appointed on 18 May 2016)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Zeng Zhijie
Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick
Dr. Lai Guanrong
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Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the chairman of the Company and the other Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual Report. All
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director are
suitably qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his
duties effectively and efficiently.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, business and family relationships among
members of the Board.

2. Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held 25 board meetings, 4 of which were regular board
meetings for reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company, 14 of which were for approving the share
allotment upon the exercise of share options during the year ended 31 December 2016, and 7 of which were
for other discussions on general operations of the Group. The attendance records of the board meetings and
general meetings held are set out below:

Attended/
Number of
board Attended/
meetings Number of
held for board Attended/
approving meetings Total Attended/
the share held for other number of Number of
Attended/ allotment  discussions on board general
Number of upon the general meetings meetings
regular board exercise of operations held during held during
meetings held share options of the Group the year the year
Executive Directors
Dr. Chen Yuhong 4/4 14/14 7 25/25 0/1
Dr. Tang Zhenming 414 14/14 17 25/25 0/1
Mr. Wang Hui 1/1* 5/5* 1/1* 7T 0/1*
Non-executive Directors
Dr. Zhang Yagin 4/4 0/14 17 5/25 0/1
Mr. Samuel Thomas Goodner 3/3+ 0/8* 1/6* 417* 0/1*
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zeng Zhijie 3/4 0/14 17 4/25 0/1
Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick 4/4 14/14 7 25/25 11
Dr. Lai Guanrong 4/4 0/14 27 6/25 0/1

* Only the meeting held during his tenure is counted
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The Directors will receive details of agenda items for decision and detailed documents in advance of each
Board meeting. The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed documents to the Directors
prior to the Board meetings to ensure that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding the
matters discussed in the meetings. The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

Functions of the Board of Directors

The Board is currently responsible for corporate strategy and development, overseeing the business
operations of the Group, financial reporting, legal and regulatory compliance, directors’ appointments, risk
management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions. Major corporate matters delegated by
the Board to management include preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board’s approval, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board and implementation of internal control system.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors appointed by the Company have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests of shareholders. Among the
three independent non-executive Directors, one of them has appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or relevant financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. Each
independent non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company, and
the Company considers these Directors to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick and Mr. Zeng Zhijie were appointed on 22 March 2006 and 21 April 2003
respectively and have served as independent non-executive Directors for more than nine years. Pursuant to
code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, having served the Company for more than nine years could be relevant
to the determination of an independent non-executive director’s independence. Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick
and Mr. Zeng Zhijie have not engaged in any executive management of the Group. Taking into consideration
of their independent scope of works in the past years, the Directors consider Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick and
Mr. Zeng Zhijie to be independent under the Listing Rules despite the fact that they have served the Company
for more than nine years.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chen Yuhong currently assumes the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Board believes that by holding both roles, Dr. Chen will be able to provide the Group with
strong and consistent leadership, and it allows for more effective and efficient business planning and
decisions as well as execution of long-term business strategies of the Group. As such, the structure is
beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.

Terms of Appointment of Non-executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is
subject to re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings unless previously terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.
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7. Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
According to the articles of association of the Company, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from

office at each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once in every three years.

Prior to the convening of the annual general meeting of the Company in May 2017, the board of Directors
resolved that Dr. Chen Yuhong, Dr. Tang Zhenming and Mr. Zeng Zhijie should retire and stand for re-election
at the annual general meeting in accordance with the requirements under the articles of association of the
Company.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an independent non-executive director has served more
than nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
Shareholders. Accordingly, Mr. Zeng Zhijie shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by way of
a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders at the AGM.

8. Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should participate in a programme of
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. The Company encourages all Directors to attend
relevant training courses and continuously updates the Directors on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development, including attending seminars or training sessions and reading newspapers, journals and
updates relating to economy, general business or directors’ duties and responsibilities etc.. The Company
also encouraged all Directors to participate relevant courses which enable them to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills for better fulfilment of the directors’ duties.

9. Company Secretary

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda of the Board meetings and ensures all
relevant rules and regulations of the procedures of such meeting are complied with. The Company Secretary
files for and maintains the detailed minutes of each Board meeting, and makes such minutes available and
accessible for all Directors.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary of the Company has taken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES

1.

Remuneration Committee

During the year under review, the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick and other members included Dr. Chen Yuhong,
Mr. Zeng Zhijie and Dr. Lai Guanrong. Dr. Chen Yuhong is an executive Director, and the remaining three
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 28 June 2005. The role and function of the remuneration
committee included the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the board of Directors for the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee will consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and senior management of the Company, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Details of attendance of the meeting of the Remuneration Committee are set out as follows:

Name of Director Number of attendance
Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Chen Yuhong 1/1
Mr. Zeng Zhijie 1/1
Dr. Lai Guanrong 1/1

The board of Directors considered that the existing terms of appointment and levels of remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company are fair and reasonable, and resolved that a review be
carried out again in the year ending 31 December 2017.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 20 May 2013 to replace the original share option
scheme adopted on 2 June 2003, which serves as an incentive to attract, retain and motivate talented eligible
staff, including the Directors. Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements. The emolument payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under
employment contracts, if any, and as recommended by the Remuneration Committee. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on 2 June 2003 and amended its
written terms of reference on 31 December 2015 to comply with the requirements in the CG Code. The Audit
Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial reporting and internal
control system. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zeng Zhijie, Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick and Dr. Lai Guanrong. Dr.
Leung Wing Yin Patrick is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee met at least on a
semi-yearly basis during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group’s unaudited interim results and audited annual results during the year ended 31 December 2016
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure has been
made.
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The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is delegated by the Board to assess matters related to the
financial statements. Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee has, amongst others, the following

duties:

o making recommendation to the Board on appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor of the Group and considering the remuneration and terms of engagement of that external
auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standard;

o reviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk management system;

o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

o ensuring that management has fulfilled its duty to establish and maintain an effective internal control
and risk management systems;

° ensuring compliance with applicable statutory accounting and reporting requirements, legal and
regulatory requirements, internal rules and procedures approved by the Board;

o reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the Groups’ financial statements, annual reports, accounts
and interim report;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and the

relevant legal and regulatory requirements and their compliances.

During the year under review, three meetings were held by the Audit Committee. Details of attendance of the
Audit Committee meetings are set out as follows:

Name of member Number of attendance
Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Zeng Zhijie 2/3
Dr. Lai Guanrong 3/3
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) on 28 March 2012 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirement in the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and senior management. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee comprised of one executive Director, Dr. Chen Yuhong
and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zeng Zhijie, Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick and Dr. Lai
Guanrong. Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Details of attendance of the meeting of the Nomination Committee are set out as follows:

Name of Director Number of attendance
Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Chen Yuhong 1/1
Mr. Zeng Zhijie 1/1
Dr. Lai Guanrong 1/1

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships by making reference to the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the requirements of the business of the Group
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged
to carry out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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E.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

1.

Director’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies have been adopted and applied consistently, and that judgments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable.

The Directors acknowledges their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Having made appropriate enquiries, the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it has the overall responsibility of the internal control system to enhance the
awareness of risk management and assets protection. The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable policies and procedures to manage business risk and to avoid misstatement of the performance
of the Group. The Company has a clearly defined organisation chart by functions, an effective filing system to
maintain proper records for accounting and business transactions, well established procedures in approving
payments and safeguarding the appropriate use of assets. The Company periodically conducted reviews of
its financial, operational and risk management control activities to ensure the Group’s compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The Company also reviews its internal control system periodically and report
to the senior management of the Company quarterly and to the Audit Committee annually thereafter, taking

effective actions on recommendation, if any, to improve its system.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any
non-audit functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the year under review, the Group was
required to pay an aggregate of approximately RMB5,680,000 million to the external auditor for their audit
services.
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F. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL MONITORING

1.

Accountability

The Board understands that its responsibility is to assess and determine the nature and level of risks that the
Group is willing to accept in the process of reaching strategic targets, and to ensure the Group establishes
and maintains an appropriate and effective risk management and internal control system. This system is
aimed at managing and not eliminating the risk of not meeting business targets, and will provide reasonable
but not absolute guarantee that major misrepresentations or business losses will not occur.

Structure of Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Governance

The Board is responsible for the assessment and determination of significant risks and the effectiveness of
risk management monitoring for the year; it is responsible for the maintenance of an appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control system; it is responsible to make conclusions as to the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system, after considering the work and review results of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in the assessment and monitoring of the risks
encountered by the Group, the management of relevant risks, and the design and performance of the internal
control system. It reports to the Board after properly reviewing the Group’s annual risk management and the
effectiveness of the internal control system.

The management is responsible for the proper design, implementation and monitoring of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system as authorized by the Board, and the confirmation provided to the
Board as to the effectiveness of the relevant system.

The risk assessment team is responsible for the coordination of risk identification and assessment procedure,
preparation of risk assessment reports, bringing identified risks to the attention of the Audit Committee, and
reporting the actions taken in relation to the management of such risks.

The internal audit team is responsible for assisting the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system, and to conduct independent assessments of the
established risk management and internal control system in accordance with the internal control procedures.

Business divisions and functional operations department are responsible, in accordance with their duties, for
identifying, assessing and responding to the risks relevant to their individual departments’, and carrying out
risk management procedures and internal control measures within the scope of their respective business and
functional operations areas.
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3.

Risk Management

3.1

3.2

Risk Management Objectives

The objective of corporate risk management is to manage significant risks that the Company is faced
with, and take specific responsive and monitoring actions on significant risks, through the
establishment of a proper organizational system and management model. The specific objectives are
as follows:

o Identify, assess, quantify, respond and manage all current and future significant risks, and
contain them at all times at a level and in a scope acceptable to management;

o Establish a consistent and effective monitoring and reporting system for all significant risks;

° Provide reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the requirements of relevant
laws and regulations of external monitoring authorities, and that various departments comply
with relevant internal rules and regulations;

° Provide reasonable assurance that significant measures to achieve the Company’s targets are
properly implemented.

Major Processes of Risk Management

Risk management mainly includes four major areas: risks identification, risks assessment, risks
mitigation and risk monitoring and reporting.

Risk identification: each business and functional department conducts, at least once in a year, an
identification of potential internal and external risks in its respective operation processes. During risks
identification, references are mainly made to the impact the risks have on the Company’s objectives,
and major problems or risk incidents in the business activities for the past year. Risks identified are
summarized and categorized to establish a risk data base.

Risk assessment: according to the risks assessment standards, each business and functional
department reviews the risks identified, and assesses the possibilities of occurrence and the extents
of impacts in order to screen out the significant risks. The Group adopts a combination of bottom-up
and top-down risk assessment procedures to fully identify all of the Group’s significant risks, which
are then given rankings. Significant risks are then reported to the appropriate management level, Audit
Committee and the Board. A final list of significant risks is confirmed after thorough communication
and discussion.

Risks mitigation: the responsible department of the identified risks formulates a risk response plan by
properly applying methods such as risk avoidance, risk reduction, risk sharing and risk retention, with
consideration of the Group’s level of risk tolerance. This allows the Group to properly allocate
resources for risk mitigation or improvements on risk mitigation measures, with an aim to reduce the
overall risk of the Group to an acceptable level.
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Risk monitoring and reporting: Risk monitoring and reporting are carried out by integrating the use of
risk warning indicators, internal auditing and periodic summarized risk reports.

3.3 Significant Risks

In accordance with the corporate risk management framework, the Group conducted an overall risk
audit and assessment in 2016. The following lists the significant risks of the Group and its major
affiliates, the changes in the nature and level of these risks, and the relevant plans and monitoring

measures to mitigate these significant risks.

Promotion

new type of business

The Company is actively
exploring the crowdsourcing
model, on which certain
investment has already been
made in the early stage of
platform construction. As new
product launch will pose risks for
the existing markets, and there
also exist uncertainties regarding
marketing promotion and
consumer acceptance,
crowdsourcing will need a
transformation of customer habits
to gain market visibility and
acceptance. The growth rate of
the current crowdsourcing
marketis low, which may have
impact on the Company’s
operating profit.

marketing through incessant
technological innovation to
improve user experience.
Interact proactively with
government institutions,
organize and participate in
various industry forums, and
fully capitalize on different

types of promotion channels to

strengthen promotion.

Risk Type Risk Description Response Mitigation Plan Risk Trend
Risk in Market | Ferocious competition, with Improve the Company’s Reduced
Competition possible increase of intensity | servicing capabilities through

Current competition for key technological innovations and

customers is very keen. learning advanced customer

Competitors have expanded theories, build internal core

market share by establishing JVs | competitiveness, establish

with key customers and their competitive barriers, and

responses to market change has |improve customer stickiness

been quick. This may further

aggravate competition in the

industry, and may have a

negative impact on Company

profitability.
Risk in Market | Risk in market promotion for | Achieve word-of-mouth Reduced
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Resources

staff structure optimization
were faced with challenges.
Human resources are an
important factor for the survival
and development of a high
technology enterprise. Core
technology, combined with sales
personnel and quality leadership
team, is the foundation for the
maintenance and enhancement
of the Company’s core
competitiveness. However, as
labor cost in China continues to
rise, Company profitability may
be adversely affected. Meanwhile,
the Company may be subject to
pressure and challenge in the
areas of rising manpower cost,
attraction and retention of senior
professional, and structural
optimization of the human
resources system.

and increase recruitment from
regions where labor costs are
lower so as to distribute the
pressure of manpower cost. At
the same time, improve the
incentive system by increasing
investment in staff training, with
focus on senior business
employees so as to build up
and maintain a reserve of
talents for the Company’s
sustained growth.

Risk Type Risk Description Response Mitigation Plan Risk Trend
Risk of Risk of exchange rate The Company will continue to | No change
Exchange Rate |fluctuation strengthen the analysis and
Fluctuation International software business is | studies on exchange rate

an important part of the fluctuation, and adopt

company’s main business. appropriate foreign exchange

Exchange rate fluctuations may | hedging measures, and select

have adverse effect on the appropriate currencies for

Company’s competitive edge guotations to reduce any

against the competitors overseas, | adverse effects brought about

and on the development of the by exchange rate fluctuations.

Company’s international

business. The fluctuations may

also, to a certain extent, affect

the Company’s revenue and

profit levels.
Risk in Human | Manpower cost control and Strictly control labor idle rate, |Increasing
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Property Risk

in preserving intellectual
property rights in case of
infringement

Infringement of rights in the
industry is common. The
infringers may take actions such
as concealment or destruction of
infringing products, which results
in relatively big difficulties in the
preservation of rights, and may
bring economic loss to the
Company.

Company’s employees in
intellectual property rights
protection, further strengthen
the efforts in monitoring the
market with respect to the
protection of intellectual
property rights, and take timely
actions in preserving and
notarizing evidence in relation
to the infringement actions.

Risk Type Risk Description Response Mitigation Plan Risk Trend
Risk in Tax Tax policy changes leading to | Pay attention to the changes No change
Management increase in tax and updates of various tax

The Company currently enjoys a |laws and regulations, monitor

national preferential tax policy all financial indicators of the

granted to hi-tech enterprises or | Company to ensure they meet

key software enterprises. If there | current preferential tax policy

is any adjustment in this policy, |requirements and adopt timely

the tax incentives enjoyed by the |response measures

Company may be affected, which| accordingly.

may result in the increase of the

Company’s tax liabilities, and

may, to an extent, affect the

Company’s profitability.
Intellectual Risk of inadequacy of evidence | Reinforce the awareness of Reduced
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4.

Internal Control

4.1

4.2

Internal Control Objectives

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to supervise the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control system, and a sound and effective internal control system is achieved through a management
structure with explicit authorization and internal monitoring accountability. The objectives are:

° to reasonably assure that the enterprise is operated and managed in compliance with the laws
and regulations, its assets are safe, and its financial reports and related information are true
and complete;

° to enhance operating efficiency and performance;
o to promote the achievement of the enterprise’s development strategies.

Internal control

The Group has referred to the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) framework, and incorporated the Group’s business management characteristics in the
design of its internal control system, and has established an internal audit team to take responsibility
of the internal control function. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group completed
risk-oriented internal assessments on day-to-day fund management, financial reporting management,
procurement and inventory, asset management, and business and debt collection procedures, and
periodically followed-up with the rectifications of the problems identified by internal audit. Management
and Audit Committee reviewed the internal control assessment reports, and assessed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The scope of the review
included the Group’s major control and risk management functions, such as financial control,

operations control and compliance control.

The Board considered that, as at 31 December 2016, the Group had carried out internal control’s
“plan, review, report and follow-up” processes of the close-loop management system, that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems were effective and adequate, that the
Company’s procedures on financial reporting and the compliance of the provisions under the Listing
Rules were effective and adequate and that no significant areas of concern that might affect the
Group’s financial control, operations control, compliance control and risk management functions had
been uncovered.

In the process of the review, the Board considered that the resources, qualifications/experience of

staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting, as well as their training and budget were
adequate.
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4.3 Inside information

The Company is aware of and strictly comply with the requirements of the currently applicable laws,
regulations and guidelines, including the obligations to disclose inside information under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission, at the time when the relevant businesses are
transacted. The Group has established the authority and accountability, as well as the handling and
dissemination procedures in relation to inside information, and has communicated to all relevant
personnel and provided them with specific trainings in respect of the implementation of the continuous

disclosure policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s handling and dissemination procedures and measures in
relation to inside information are effective.

G. INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company commits to promoting transparency and maintaining effective communication with investors, analysts
and the press. The management periodically meets with existing and potential investors to make corporate
presentations. The Company also communicates with its shareholders and investors through the publication of
annual and interim reports, announcements and press releases, as well as the Company’s website at
http://www.chinasofti.com. The Company hosts an annual general meeting each year to meet the Company’s
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

H. SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS

1. How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting
Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any one or more shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

2. The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the board and sufficient contract details to enable
these enquiries to be properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the principal place
of business of Company in Hong Kong at Units 4607-8, 46th Floor, COSCO Tower, No. 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong by post for the attention of the Board.

3. The procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings
Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the operations, strategy and/or management of
the Group be discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to the Board by written requisition.
Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal
should convene an extraordinary general meeting by following the procedures as set out above.
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Report of Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. During the year under review, there were no significant changes in the Group’s principal activities.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 82.

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.012 per ordinary share from share premium
account of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016. The proposed dividend payments from share
premium account of the Company are subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting to be held on Thursday, 18 May 2017 at 4:00 p.m.. Upon shareholders’ approval at the upcoming annual general
meeting, the proposed final dividend will be paid on Tuesday, 13 June 2017 to shareholders whose names shall appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 2 June 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a) For the purpose of determining the qualification as shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 15 May 2017 to Thursday, 18 May 2017, both
days inclusive. In order to qualify as shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered
holders of shares of the Company are required to lodge all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712- 1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 May 2017.

(b) For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend (subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the AGM), the register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 31 May 2017 to
Friday, 2 June 2017, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company are required to lodge all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 29 May 2017.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2016 are RMB1,770,016,000 approximately.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the Group’s property, plant and equipment are set out in note 12 to the financial

statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five years, as extracted from the

audited financial statements, is set out on page 184. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

(i

(ii)

Review of our business

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the sections headed

“Chairman’s Letter” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 3 to 5 and pages 27 to 36 respectively of

this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The management is already aware of the principal risks associated with the Group’s business and accordingly

estimates and manages all kinds of risks encountered through inspection under the risk internal control system.

(1)

Financial Risk
Capital risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes borrowings, convertible loan notes,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the Company (including share
capital, share premium, reserves and accumulated profits).

The Directors review the capital structure semi-annually. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new shares
issues and as well as the issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debt.

Interest rate risk

Because of the fluctuations of calculating the interest rate of financial assets and liabilities, the Group bears
interest rate risks. Interest bearing financial assets are mainly bank deposits (mainly of a short term nature);
and interest bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans which are on a floating rate basis. The Group is
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to convertible loan notes, borrowing with fixed interest rates
and amounts due to related companies. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable rate bank borrowings and short-term bank deposits which are mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of prevailing interest rate announced by the People’s Bank of China and London Inter Bank
Offered Rate in respect of an unsecured bank loan.

The Group’s policy is to obtain the prime rate.
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(iii)

(iv)

@)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have bank balances and cash, trade receivables denominated in foreign
currencies arising from income generated from provision of services, trade and other payables arising from
purchases denominated in foreign currencies and borrowing, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group’s principal operating subsidiaries are located in the PRC, the United States and Japan, and
the Group’s principal businesses are conducted in Renminbi. The Group is mainly exposed to United States
Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Japanese Yen. The impact of foreign exchange exposure is minimal, and the
management has kept on monitoring the movement of all foreign currency exposure.

Credit risk

The Group conducts business with credible third parties. The Group’s policy is that all customers intending to
conduct business on credit are required to pass a credit assessment procedure: in order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated specific persons responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable at the
end of each reporting period, based on the evaluation of the age of the trade receivable, the credibility of the
debtor, payment history and previous revocation experience, to ensure that adequate impairment losses, if
necessary, are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Business Risk
Market risk

Loss of market share is a market risk encountered by the Group. The Group constantly faces fierce market
competition in the core markets of the PRC. The financial position of the Group may be adversely affected if it
fails to respond to market changes resulting to loss of business to opponents. The Group has professional
sales and client management teams and is committed to ensure that the existing clients and business will be
retained through competitive quality services and pricing policy.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from external events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with every function at
divisional and departmental levels. Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, safety standard, limits of authority and reporting framework. The management will identify and
assess key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk response can be taken.

Important events after the reporting date affecting the Group

No any important events which happened after the reporting date of 31 December 2016 affecting the Group.

Future development of the Group

An indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s

Letter”

report.

and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 3 to 5 and pages 27 to 36 respectively of this annual
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Report of Directors

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations; in particular,
those have significant impact on the Group, such as the Listing Rules and the Revised Hong Kong Financial;
Reporting Standards. The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board to monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
from time to time. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection in its
daily business operation. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group is in compliance with international and
national environmental standards and implemented green production policies to raise efficiency and minimize both
energy consumption and pollutant discharge. The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the Group’s business operation to enhance
sustainability.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a headcount of 47,188 employees (31 December 2015: 31,504). Salaries
of employees are maintained at a competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close reference to the relevant
labour market as well as the minimum wages guideline as prescribed by the local government from time to time.

The Group awards discretionary bonuses to eligible employees based upon profit achievements of the Company and
individual performance. The Company has also adopted a share option scheme in order to attract and retain the best
available personnel and to align the interests of the employees with the Group’s interests. Being people-oriented, the
Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review and update
its policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A customer complaint handling mechanism is in place
to receive, analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving service
quality. The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on
an annual basis.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be

indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about

the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has maintained appropriate

directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers of the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year end and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors: Non-executive Directors: Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Chen Yuhong Dr. Zhang Yagin Mr. Zeng Zhijie
Dr. Tang Zhenming Mr. Samuel Thomas Goodner Dr. Leung Wing Yin Patrick

Dr. Lai Guanrong

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the Directors (who have been longest in
office since their last election) will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors’ appointment and resignation are set out in the Corporate Government Report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Chen Yuhong has entered into a service agreement with the Company. Particulars of the contract, except as indicated,
are in all material respects identical and are set out below:

(i) the service contract is of two years duration commencing on 20 June 2003. The service contract shall continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three months’ prior written notice, such
notice not to be given before the expiry of the initial term of two years;

(”) s XpnOf n

Chinasoft International Limited  Annual Report 2016



62

Report of Directors

Each year, the Company’s auditor is engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
board of directors engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information" and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules" issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in page 61 of the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor's letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Directors also confirm the above connected transactions also constitute related party transactions under the accounting
standards, details of which are set out in note 40 to the financial statements. Related party transactions set out in note 40
to the financial statements other than those transactions disclosed above are not considered to be connected transactions.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of the above transactions.

Save as disclosed therein, there were no other transactions required to be disclosed as connected transactions and/or
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
64.1% of the Group’s total turnover and the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 53.6% of the Group’s
total turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers was approximately 50.3% of the
Group’s total purchases and the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 17.3% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns

more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the
Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
So far as was known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2016, the interest of the persons (not being a Director or chief
executive of the Company) in the shares of the Company which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Approximate total issued total issued
number of  ordinary share of share* of
Name Nature of interest Shares the Company the Company
(million)
Prime Partners Development Limited ~ Beneficial interest 139.07 6.01% 5.75%
(Note 1)
* The total number of issued share consists of 2,314,174,436 Ordinary Shares and 103,992,922 Convertible Notes, which could be
converted into 103,992,922 Ordinary Shares.
Note:
1. Dr. Chen Yuhong is deemed to be interested in 139,072,725 shares and through Prime Partners Development Limited, which is

wholly owned by Dr. Chen Yuhong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December, 2016, no other interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of

the Company were recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchases, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during

the year under review.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of Directors (on a named basis) and the five highest-paid employed (including the senior
management of the Group) are set out in note 9 to the financial statements, respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or the management shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competed or might compete with the
business of the Group.

AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No any subsequent event of the Group which happened after the reporting date of 31 December 2016.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chen Yuhong
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Beijing, 27 March 2017
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The Group adheres to the vision of “Striving for Success, Sharing and Growing with the Customers”. It contributes to and
serves the communities where our operations are located, with a conscientious, fair and sincere working attitude,
emphasizing cooperation with our business partners and employees. As we strive to achieve healthy financial performance,
we also continue to improve our efforts in environmental protection, social responsibilities, and efficient governance.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s strategy and reporting in the areas of environmental, social responsibilities and
governance. The Board is responsible for the assessment and determination of the Group’s risks with respect to
environment, social and governance, and ensures the Group has established a proper and effective system in environmental,
social and governance, risk management and internal control, and the management confirms to the Board whether such
systems are effective.

The Group sorts out and summarizes the social responsibility management tasks for the year, included the environmental,
social and governance related issues into this report according to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules (“Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide”). According to the assessment results of the Group, the table below lists the issues
deemed significant by the Group in the areas of environmental, social and governance, and the scope under the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” that these issues belong. This report covers the period from 1
January 2016 to 31st December 2016 (the “Reporting Period”). Its scope extends to Corporate Headquarters as well as all
affiliated enterprises.

Scope of “Environmental, Social and

Governance Reporting Guide” Significant Issues of the Group

A. Environmental

Al Emissions Carbon emissions, fixed waste management
A2 Use of resources Utilization of energy and water

A3 The environment and natural resources Green commuting and green service

B. Social

B1 Employment Equal opportunity and diversified employment

B2 Health and safety Occupational health and staff safety

B3 Development and training Employee development and training

B4 Labor standards Prohibition of child labor and forced labor

B5 Supply chain management Responsibility and green purchasing

B6 Product responsibility Professional quality service and data privacy management
B7 Anti-corruption Anti-corruption

B8 Community investment Community welfare

A ENVIRONMENT

The Group actively responds to the national policy of “construction of an energy saving and environmentally friendly
society”. It strives to reduce impact on the environment and on climate change, through energy saving and emission
reduction. The Group strictly complies with environmental laws and regulations such as the “PRC Environmental
Protection Law” (D 00000000 O OO), the “PRC Atmospheric Pollution Prevention Law” (000000000
O 0000), actively fulfills its responsibilities in the environment, and strives to achieve better results in the
environment. During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of non-compliance with the relevant environmental
laws and regulation in the Company that should be liable to be proceeded against and punished accordingly.

Al Emissions

The Group is a service oriented enterprise mainly with office operations, the daily business poses little impact
on the environment. The main sources of the Group’s emission are generation of greenhouse gases,
domestic waste water, discarded computers (electronic garbage) from daily operating office and consumer
garbage that may be hazardous or non-hazardous. During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of
non-compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulation in the Company that should be liable to
be proceeded against and punished accordingly.
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A2

A3

The Group has established a greenhouse gas emission reduction system, and formulated a greenhouse gas
emission reduction plan, so as to reduce the emission of greenhouse gas. Details of emission policies are set
out in paragraph A2 of this Chapter under Use of Resources.

Domestic wastewater and garbage generated by the Group’s daily operation are all handled by logistics
companies and the municipal administration.

The Group places high emphasis on the effective recycling of electronic garbage. It adopts the management
policy of recycling in whole or in part, repairing and upgrade, to achieve reasonable and effective use of
assets and to effectively reduce the generation of electronic garbage. Key initiatives include the following:

o Inventory of fixed assets within the company area were taken, and RAMs were added to computers of
the production departments with slow processing speed, which were reassigned, after replacement of
power units, to employees with lower demands for computer performance. During the reporting
period, the Group put a total of 1,865 old computers to use;

° Scrapped computers were disassembled for reuse of their parts, so as to reduce procurement cost
and asset depletion. During the reporting period, the company at Xian disassembled and re-used 120
pieces of RAMs, 60 units of power source, 30 hard disks, and reused the parts. A total of 200
computers were successfully returned to the workforce. Assuming that the procurement cost for a
new computer is $4,500, the total saving in procurement costs was $900,000;

o A centralized computer appropriation and transfer program is used to redeploy computers belonging
to different projects and different business teams of the Group, so as to increase utilization rate of
equipment, and reduce duplicated purchases of idle equipment.

Utilization of Resources

The Group advocates Green Office Practices and incorporates the low carbon footprint philosophy into
production operations so that the Group can maximize resource savings, and achieve energy utilization
reduction and low carbon emission. The Group has established a series of rules and regulations for the
purpose of reducing resource and energy consumptions, and actively implements the following in all facets of
daily office routines:

o Adopt the use of LEDs to reduce electric consumption; lighting/air-conditioning switches are labeled
with the appropriate energy saving labels;

o “Save Water” labels are posted in lavatories as reminders to cultivate a proper water utilization
concept and proper water utilization practice among employees;

o Advocate low carbon green commuting to reduce the use of company cars and to fully utilize public
transport, to reduce the use of petroleum, and to reduce energy consumption in commuting by
recommending the use of video conferences.

During the Reporting Period, the total renovated office space was 100,903 square meters, all adopted the
use of the energy saving LEDs. The company at Xian renovated 68,905 square meters of office space, and
installed 20,000 LEDs. Under the same lighting requirement, LEDs save 25% energy as compare with
ordinary lightings. This translates into a monthly saving of 16,693 kWh of electricity by the company at Xian
since the adoption of LEDs in late 2016.

The environment and natural resources

The Group places heavy emphasis on environmental protection and strives to minimize the impact of the
Company’s operation on the environment. We encourage staff to use public transport to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions so as to achieve “low carbon travelling”.

The Group achieves energy saving and reduced use through standardized energy saving practices, energy
saving technological innovation, application of renewable energy, enhanced digital management information,
promotion of electronic marketing service channels and development of energy saving information
applications. These help the Group achieve its goals in environmental protection, and at the same time,
provide energy saving information solutions to other industries in the society. During the Reporting Period,
the Group made significant efforts in promoting the Big Data and Cloud Storage businesses in the financial
and government sectors, and helped various industries as well as the entire society to lower carbon emission
through green ICT technology.
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B SOCIAL

In the process of its high quality development, the Group is attentive to the needs of employees, customers,
suppliers, social community and related stake holders. It launches its operations in compliance with the laws and
regulations, and strive to improve the well-being of employees, satisfaction of cooperation partners, and social
recognition for the optimization of benefits and harmonious development of all stake holders.

B1 Employment

Talents are the core competitiveness of the Group. The Group upholds the principle of equal opportunities in
hiring throughout its recruitment process by strictly comply with the “PRC Labor Law” (0 OO O0OOO0O0O
0), the “PRC Labor Contract Law” (00O OOO0OO0OO0OO), the “Regulations of Insurance for
Employment Injury” (O O O O O O) and other such laws and regulations for the enhancement of democratic
elements in management to effectively protect employees’ legal rights.

At the same time, under the premise of compliance with the national laws and regulation and combined with
the actual conditions, the Group has issued an “Employee Handbook” as a set of implementation standards
and operational rules, which serve to give specific requirements for establishing equal employer-employee
relationship and protection of the employees’ benefits.

The Group acknowledges that diversity in staff composition is a key factor in maintaining the Group’s long
term competitive advantage. It supports employee diversity through a number of measures, according to the
competitive characteristics of the industry and the requirements of the enterprise’s strategic development.
The hiring requirements of different positions are in line with relevant labor laws and regulations. Talents in the
society are attracted through recruitment of new graduates or introduction of experienced talents, with an
aim to promoting diversity of staff composition.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total staff of 47,188, distributed in different regions of the country
and different countries of the world. The total number of ethnic minorities in the workforce, including Hui,
Tujia, Manchu, Zhuang was 2,110. The male and female ratios, the age distribution, geographical distribution
and academic distribution of Company’s employees are indicated as below:

Male and Female Employees Age
Employees Rations Distribution

EMale M Female M Below 30 ¥ 30 and above
Employees Geographical Employees Age
Distribution Distribution

4%

5%\

v

mShenzhen mXian ~ mNanjing = Shanghai

M Below m University m Master and

iversi Above
WBejing M Chengdu M Wuhan M Others University
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One of the Company’s development strategic initiatives is to recruit new graduates from campus as trainees.
During the Reporting Period, 3,439 new graduates were hired. The Group received high recognition from
leadership and students of the target institutes, which greatly enhanced the Group’s visibility in the society.

The Company’s Campus Recruitment Team 2016 Campus Recruitment Event

The Group advocates a “Happy Chinasoft International” and encourages the staff together with the Company
to “Jointly create a wonderful, glorious success”. During the reporting period, the Group has organized a
network annual meeting, Mid-Autumn Delicacy Garden Party, Basketball Competition, and other activities to
promote teamwork and sense of belonging.

2016 Chinasoft International Annual Internet Conversation The Third Session of Basketball League Competition of
Chinasoft International Process IT LOB

The Group has established a salary incentive system which is closely linked with the individual’s personal
performance and the organization’s performance. Full consideration is given to have employees’ salaries
grow in-sync with the Company’s performance, and to ensure that the employees are compensated fairly and
have their share of return according to their contributions. Performance appraisals are based on objective
facts and data and the process is open and transparent.

Chinasoft International Limited  Annual Report 2016



72 Environmental, Social and Governance Reports

During the Reporting Period, the Group organized various public welfare activities, including the “Walk for
JointForce, Share and Assist the Young”. The Group sent greetings to sanitation workers during festive
holidays, visited Xian’s “Hand-in-hand Special Education Center” and Dalian’s “Autism Support Center” and
sent love to the children. With these community activities, the Company has always practiced to fulfill
corporate social responsibilities. It insists on doing the ordinary things, light up the road ahead with love and
care and contributes continuously to the cause of China’s social welfare.

’y U
e

Joint Force e Walk for the Community Walk For the Community e Sent Rice Dumplings to
Sanitation Workers on Dragon Boat Festival
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The following sets out the profile of the Directors and senior management of the Company:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Chen Yuhong (O O 0O), aged 54, is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is responsible for
the overall business development of the Group. He has over 20 years of practicing experience in software information
industry. Dr. Chen holds a doctorate degree in optics from Beijing Institute of Technology (0 O O 0O 0O O) in 1991. Prior to
joining the Company on 25 April 2000, Dr. Chen worked at China National Computer Software & Technology Service
Corporation (“CS&S”) from October 1996 to April 2000, subsequently was appointed as vice president in June 1999 and as
senior vice president of CNTC (D 0O 0OOO0OOOOOO) in December 2003. He has also been appointed a director of
Chinasoft Resources Information Technology Services Limited. He was also a director of CS&S Cyber Resources Software
Technology (Tianjin) Co., Ltd., an associate company of CS&S from 1999 to March 2002. From June 1991 to October 1996,
he was the deputy general manager of China Great Wall Computer Software Co., Ltd. (D OO O0OO0O0O0O0O0O).

Dr. Tang Zhenming (O O O), aged 54, is the senior vice president of the Company. He is responsible for the Group’s training
department. Dr. Tang obtained a doctorate degree in motor electronic control from Beijing Institute of Technology (0 O O O
0 0) in 1994. Prior to joining the Company on 25 April 2000, Dr. Tang was employed by Beijing Institute of Technology
Industrial Company (00000 O0O0O0OOO) as deputy general manager from May 1995 to March 2000 and by American
W&P Company, Beijing Office (0 O W&PDO O 0 0O 0O O O) as officer from December 1993 to March 1995.
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Non-executive Director

Dr. Zhang Yaqin (O O O), aged 51, was appointed on 31 December 2008. Dr. Zhang Ya-Qin is currently the President of
Baidu Corporation, in charge of emerging business and basic technology system and also the Chairman of Baidu R&D
Centre in U.S. Prior to joining Baidu, Dr. Zhang was Microsoft’s Corporate Vice President and Chairman of Asia R&D Group,
leading Microsoft’s R&D efforts in Asia-Pacific, Microsoft’s largest R&D establishment outside of US with over 3,000
scientists and engineers. Over 15 year tenure at Microsoft, he has taken various key positions, including the Managing
Director of Microsoft Research Asia (2000-2004), Chairman of Microsoft China (2007-2012), Corporate Vice President of
Mobile and Embedded Products (2004-2006), and Asia R&D Chairman until September 2014. Before joining Microsoft, Dr.
Zhang was Director of the Multimedia Technology Laboratory at Sarnoff Corp. Princeton, New Jersey (RCA Laboratories),
where he oversaw the development of several significant digital video encoding and communications technologies for
commercial and surveillance/security systems. Prior to that, from 1989 to 1994, Dr. Zhang was a senior technical staff
member at GTE Laboratories Inc. (now part of Verizon) Corp. in Waltham, MA. Dr. Zhang is a Fellow of Institute of Electrical
and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) and has published more than 500 papers in leading international conferences and journals.
He has been granted more than 60 US patents in digital video, Internet, multimedia, wireless and satellite communications.
He was a key contributor to the ISO/MPEG and ITU standardization efforts in digital video and multimedia. In 1997, he
became the youngest ever Fellow of IEEE and has served as editor-in-chief for several influential IEEE journals. Currently,
Zhang serves on the Board of Directors of five high-tech IT companies. He is an honorary or guest professor at more than
20 prestigious universities, and is an advisor to several government agencies. Zhang is also the vice Chairman of Committee
100, a group of leading Chinese-Americans to promote the political, scientific, social, and economic exchanges between
the US and China. Dr. Zhang received his B.S. and M.S. in Electrical Engineering from the University of Science and
Technology of China (USTC) in 1983 and 1985. He received his Doctor of Science in Electrical Engineering from George
Washington University, Washington D.C. in 1989.

Mr. Samuel Thomas Goodner, aged 50, is the founder and former CEO of Catapult Systems, a Microsoft-focused
information technology consulting firm with over 400 employees and 9 regional offices across the United States.
Mr. Goodner founded Catapult Systems in 1993 at the age of 26. Prior to starting Catapult, he worked in business
development at Service Systems International and developed software applications for Dell Computer Corporation. Over the
past 20 years, Mr. Goodner also founded two software product companies, PowerDOC and Inquisite, and launched several
service brands under the Catapult Systems umbrella including Mobile Alchemy, a mobile application development firm, and
Slingrock, an interactive, branding, design and marketing agency. Mr. Goodner served as a mountain infantry officer in the
Swiss Army, is a graduate of the MIT/Inc Birthing of Giants program, and a member of the Austin chapter of the Young
Presidents’ Organization (YPO). He has been repeatedly recognized for his innovation and leadership and was a recipient of
the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year award in 2008. Mr. Goodner holds a Bachelor of Science in Computer Science
from Texas A&M University.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zeng Zhijie (O O O), aged 49, was appointed on 21 April 2003. Mr. Zeng is currently the chairman and a managing
partner of Shenzhen Hongtai Fund (0 O 0 O O ), and the chairman of Houwang Investment (O O O ). He has been active
in the venture capital industry for twenty years. Since 2008, Mr. Zeng has taken the positions of senior managing director of
CITIC Capital Holdings Limited, and general manager of Kaixin Investment Co., Ltd. He was responsible for venture capital
and growth stage business. From 2001 to 2008, he was a managing director of Walden Internation1t213% $d(r)T0.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Frank Waung (O O O), age 51, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He has over 20 years experience in
financial management. Mr. Waung holds a bachelor’s degree in Computer Engineering from the University of California at
Santa Cruz and has a master’s degree in business administration from the Wharton School. Prior to joining the Company on
17 April 2012, Mr. Waung was the Chief Financial Officer for China Pharma Holdings Inc., a NYSE AMEX listed China-based
manufacturer of western pharmaceuticals from 2009 through 2012. Mr. Waung has also worked as an investment banker
with a focus on China for Hickey Freihofner Capital, a special situations analyst at Della Camera Capital Management, a
senior market economist and convertible securities trader at SG Cowen, as well as a quantitative marketer at Credit Suisse
First Boston.

Mr. Simon Chung (O O O), aged 55, is the global chief operating officer of the Company and the chief executive officer in
ITO business of Japan. He is responsible for the overall daily operation of the Group. He has over 20 years of experience in
IT professional services covering account management, service delivery management, technical sales, quality assurance
and control, project management and customer support operation in the area of public government, telecom and finance
sectors. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Computing Mathematics from the University of Wollongong in Australia. Prior to
joining the Company, he was a project director of Atos Origin responsible for the management of large scale projects and
service delivery for major clients in Asia Pacific from 1996 to 2005.

Mr. Simon Zhang (O O O ), aged 54, is the senior vice president and chief human resources officer of the Company. He is
responsible for the human resources management of the Company. Mr. Zhang worked in Shaanxi Provincial Tourism Bureau
after graduating from the Department of Economics of Northwest University in 1987. Prior to joining the Company, he was
the General Manager of Chongqging Three Gorges Liner Corporation (under China International Travel Service in Xi’an) from
1997 to 1999. From 1994 to 1997, he was the Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Northwestern branch in
Weijiang Plastics Co. Ltd., which was a Sino-US joint venture. From 1992 to 1994, Mr. Zhang was employed as Chief
Business Representative in U.S. Phoenix Medical Equipment Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leong Leung Chai, Florence (O O 00 ), aged 37, is currently the Financial Controller of the Company and responsible for
financial reporting, company secretarial functions and assists the Chief Financial Officer on Group’s accounting issues.
Before joining the Company in November 2005, Ms. Leong worked in an international audit firm for several years. She holds
a bachelor degree in Accountancy and has over 10 years’ experience in auditing, financial reporting and listing compliance.
She is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Chinasoft International Limited  Annual Report 2016



Independent Auditor’s Report 77

Deloitte.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINASOFT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

Goodwill impairment assessment

We have identified goodwill impairment assessment
as a key audit matter because, in determining the
recoverable amount, the estimates on which the
discount rates and growth rates are based entail a
significant degree of management judgement and
may be subject to management bias.

The determination of whether the carrying amount
of goodwill is recoverable requires management to
make significant estimates concerning the
estimated discount rates and growth rates based
on management’s view of future business

prospects.

Details of goodwill and the corresponding key
estimation uncertainty on its impairment
assessments are disclosed in notes 14 and 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to goodwill impairment assessment

included:
o Assessing the valuation methodology;
o Challenging the assumptions used, including specifically the

growth rates used in preparing the impairment testing model
based on our knowledge on the business and industry;

o Performing a retrospective review, comparing the historical

figures with prior year’s budget;

o Performing an independent assessment of the discount rate
used in preparing the impairment testing model in the

assistance of our internal fair value specialists; and

o Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - CONTINUED

Key audit matter

Revenue recognition from project-based

development contracts

We have identified revenue recognition from
project-based development contracts as a key
audit matter because the estimates on contract
costs outcome and expected cost to complete the
contracts are based entail a significant degree of
management judgement and may be subject to

management bias.

Revenue from project-based development
contracts is recognised under the percentage of
completion method which requires estimation
made by management. In addition, management’s
estimates of contract costs outcome and expected
cost to complete the contracts based on the
budgets prepared for the contracts is highly
judgmental and is based on past experiences and

assumptions.

Details of the revenue from project-based
development contracts and corresponding key
estimation uncertainty on recognition are disclosed
in notes 5 and 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

OTHER INFORMATION
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition from project-based

development contracts, on a sample basis, included:

Challenging the Group’s critical judgements used on
estimation of costs to complete the contract;

Assessing the reasonableness of changes if any on the
expected cost to complete the contracts;

Assessing the stage of completion through obtaining the
Group’s calculations and agreeing the inputs of the contract

costs outcome to supporting evidence;

Recalculating the percentage of completion rate and revenue
recognised for project-based development contracts;

Performing gross profit analysis; and

Inspecting the completion report for projects completed in
the current year.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information

included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit

matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is Tsang Kai Tai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Turnover 5 6,783,367 5,129,111
Cost of sales and services (4,767,529) (3,605,903)
Gross profit 2,015,838 1,523,208
Other income 41,908 46,259
Other gains or losses 1,807 (17,625)
Selling and distribution costs (219,022) (178,581)
Administrative expenses (806,614) (627,264)
Research and development costs (345,269) (195,318)
Allowance for doubtful debts (17,958) (62,055)
Other expenses (88,012) (91,961)
Fair value change on derivative financial instruments - (1,074)
Finance costs 6 (95,735) (92,509)
Share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method 17,492 1,907
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - 111,724
Gain arising from changes in fair value of contingent
consideration payable on acquisition of a subsidiary 20,152 3,283
Profit before taxation 524,587 419,994
Income tax expense 7 (114,754) (87,010)
Profit for the year 8 409,833 332,984
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
— exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
— reclassification to profit or loss upon disposal of a subsidiary

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income (expenses) attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted
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2016 2015
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
19,497 10,236

= 3,355

19,497 13,591

429,330 346,575

442,081 280,056

(32,248) 52,928

409,833 332,984

461,578 293,548

(32,248) 53,027

429,330 346,575

11 RMB0.2034 RMBO0.1405
RMB0.1979 RMBO0.1360
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Available-for-sale investment

Prepaid lease payments

Other receivable

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Bills receivable

Prepaid lease payments

Amounts due from customers for contract work
Amounts due from related companies

Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Amounts due to customers for contract work
Trade and other payables

Bills payable

Amounts due to related companies

Dividend payable

Taxation payable

Convertible loan notes

Borrowings

Consideration payable on acquisition of a subsidiary

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

NOTES

12
13
14
15
16
17
19
27

18
19

17
21
22
23
23

21
24
25
22

28
26

Chinasoft International Limited

84 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2016

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
819,799 537,593
231,075 283,103
1,008,479 995,610
104,190 78,857
61,965 49,151
38,723 39,583
30,000 11,688
7,646 6,516
2,301,877 2,002,101
20,893 30,260
2,092,700 1,429,127
23,186 8,828
860 893
1,430,206 1,516,660
59,939 49,862
670 44,891
1,298,972 1,265,831
4,927,426 4,346,352
122,271 87,750
1,203,843 940,372
812 2,120
37,983 34,667

83 78
130,450 87,353

- 89,622

922,452 1,297,016
21,035 -
2,438,929 2,538,978
2,488,497 1,807,374
4,790,374 3,809,475
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2016

2016 2015
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 27 18,943 20,504
Consideration payable on acquisition of a subsidiary - 39,205
Convertible loan notes 28 244,296 -
Borrowings 26 194,496 263,496
457,735 323,205
4,332,639 3,486,270

Capital and reserves
Share capital 29 106,387 95,645
Share premium 30 2,652,697 2,106,029
Reserves 30 1,505,130 1,045,531
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 4,264,214 3,247,205
Non-controlling interests 68,425 239,065
Total equity 4,332,639 3,486,270

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 183 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 27 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Chen Yuhong Dr. Tang Zhenming
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Statutory  Statutory
Share Convertible ~ General enterprise surplus Non-
Share Share Other ~ Translation options loan notes reserve  expansion reserve Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserves reserve reserve reserve fund fund fund profits Total interests Total
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(note 30)  (note 30) (note 30)  (note 30)  (note 30)
At 1 January 2015 88,014 1,654,687 1375 (11532) 48,813 30,301 15,793 26,749 72,658 558,091 2497379 203652 2,701,031
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 280056 280,056 52928 332,984
Other comprehensive income
for the year
- Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations - - - 10,226 - - - - - - 10,226 10 10,236
- Reclassification to profit or loss
upon disposal of a subsidiary - - - 3,266 - - - - - - 3,266 89 3,35
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 13492 - - - - - 280056 293548 53027 346575
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise
of share options 1,145 50,303 - - (10,629 - - - - - 40819 - 40819
Recogpnition of share option expenses - - - - 13,637 - - - - - 13,637 - 13,637
Cancellation of share options - - - - (1,218) - - - - 1,216 - - -
Issue of ordinary shares 3947 281430 - - - - - - - - 285317 - 285317
Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary - - 12,214 - - - - - (124) (2,138) 11,012 16,488 27,500
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - (14542) (14542
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - (19,560)  (19,560)
Conversion of convertible loan notes 2539 119,609 - - - (16,715 - - - - 105433 - 105433
Appropriations - - - - - - - - 14,599 (14,599) - - -
At 31 December 2015 95,645 2,106,029 25,989 1,960 50,605 13,676 15,793 26,749 87133 823626 3247205 239065 3,486,270
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 442081 442,081 (32,248) 409,833
Other comprehensive income
for the year
- Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations - - - 19,497 - - - - - - 19497 - 19497
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 19,497 - - - - - 402081 461578 (32248 429,330
Isue of ordinary shares upon exercise
of share options 1,365 60,568 - - (6,766) - - - - - 55,187 - 55,187
Recagpnition of share option expenses - - - - 45,285 - - - - - 45,285 - 45,85
Cancellation of share options - - - - (784) - - - - 84 - - -
Issue of ordinary shares 3602 185156 - - - - - - - - 188,758 - 188,758
Acquisition of additional equity interest
of subsidiaries - - (148759 - - - - - 1,713 86,619  (50,366)  (138,2392)  (188,758)
Issue of convertible loan notes - - - - - 42519 - - - - 42519 - 42519
Conversion of convertible loan notes 57715 300924 - - - (32,651) - - - - 214,048 - 214048
Appropriations - - - - - - - - 30,995 (30,995) - - -
At 31 December 2016 106,387 2,652,697 (122,769 21,457 88,340 23,544 15,793 26,749 129901 1322115 4,064,214 68425 4,332,639
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 524,587 419,994
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 56,192 50,647
Amortisation of intangible assets and prepaid lease payments 88,155 91,961
Finance costs 95,735 92,509
Allowance for doubtful debts 17,958 62,055
Share option expenses 45,285 13,637
Interest income (4,781) (4,316)
Share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method (17,492) (1,907)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 103 436
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries - (111,724)
Gains arising from changes in fair value of contingent
consideration payable on acquisition of a subsidiary (20,152) (3,283)
Fair value change on derivative financial instruments - 1,074
Loss on termination of the interest rate swap - 2,264
Exchange gain (losses) (1,910) 20,370
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 783,680 633,717
Increase in trade and other receivables (740,076) (243,133)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to customers for contract work 34,521 (124,455)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from customers for contract work 86,454 (106,235)
Increase in amounts due from related parties - (3,087)
Increase in trade and other payables 207,802 185,750
Increase in bills receivable (14,358) (8,828)
Decrease in inventories 9,367 1,698
Decrease in bills payable (1,308) (33,671)
Cash generated from operations 366,082 301,756
Income taxes paid (74,348) (42,195)
Net cash generated from operating activities 291,734 259,561
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88 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (303,857) (272,381)
Placement of pledged deposits (10,579) (91,494)
Development costs paid (35,425) (59,194)
Purchase of software - (9,082)
Investment in available-for-sale investment (12,814) (5,895)
Subscription of investments accounted for using the equity method (9,900) (2,500)
Payments for termination of interest rate swap - (2,264)
Advances to related parties (10,077) (197)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits 54,800 69,343
Repayment of loans to staff - 19,244
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries 33 - 12,371
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries in prior year 25,665 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investment in prior year 44,568 8,000
Interest received 4,781 4,316
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 242 2,238
Dividend received from investments accounted for using equity method 2,059 1,720
Net cash used in investing activities (250,537) (325,775)

Financing activities
New bank loans raised 3,092,248 2,149,266
Process from issuance of ordinary shares 201,727 285,377
Acquisition of non-controlling interests (201,727) -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 55,187 40,819
Issue of convertible loan notes 458,649 -
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests of a subsidiary - 27,500
Advance from a related company 3,316 7,000
Repayment of borrowings (3,535,812) (1,907,460)
Interest paid (67,885) (75,326)
Interest paid on convertible loan notes (20,200) (7,452)
Repayment of advance from a related party - (2,022)
Net cash generated from financing activities (14,497) 517,702
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 26,700 451,488
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,265,831 811,435
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 6,441 2,908

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,

representing bank balances and cash 1,298,972 1,265,831
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 89
For the year ended 31 December 2016
1. GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 16 February
2000 under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange") with effect from 20 June 2003.

On 29 December 2008, the listing of the shares of the Company was transferred to the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal places of business of the Company are disclosed in the
"Corporate Information" section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group") are development and provision of information technology ("IT") solutions services, IT outsourcing services,
IT emerging services and training services.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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90 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - CONTINUED

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need not provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the
information resulting from that disclosure is not material, and give guidance on the basis of aggregating and
disaggregating information. However, the amendments reiterate that an entity should consider providing additional
disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of particular transactions, events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the amendments provide examples of systematic ordering or
grouping of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively and the information to particulars of subsidiaries of the
Company was reordered to Note 41. Other than the above presentation and disclosure changes, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 has not resulted in any impact on the financial performance or financial position of the
Group in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related
Amendments!?

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactionst

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts?*

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses*
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

Other than described below, the directors of the Company consider the application of the new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective would not have any material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - CONTINUED
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairments for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"). All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management policies as at 31 December 2016, application of
HKFRS 9 in the future will have impacts on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The
Group’s available-for-sale investment, which is stated at cost less impairment, will either be measured as fair value
through profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to fulfilment of the designation criteria). In addition, the
expected credit loss model may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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92 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - CONTINUED

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when 'control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the potential impacts of HKFRS 15 in respect of the
Group’s Technical professional services business and Internet IT services business contracts, in particular, the
identification of performance obligations under HKFRS 15 and the allocation of total consideration to the respective
performance obligations that will be based on relative fair values and may potentially affect the timing and amounts
of revenue recognition. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review. In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - CONTINUED

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Lease and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting and is replaced by
a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of the lease
modifications, amongst other. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payment in relation to lease liabilities will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forwards the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of RMB320,193,000 as
disclosed in note 36. A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16 and hence the Group will recognised a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of
all these lease unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition,
the application of new requirements may result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors of the
Company complete a detailed review.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - CONTINUED

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. Specially, the amendments require the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values and (v) other
changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the consolidated statement of financial
position for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided on application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange ("Listing Rules") and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance ("CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair 